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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

Please take notice that there will be a meeting of the Columbia Economic Development Corporation Board held on March 29,
2022 at 8:30am, at their office located at One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534 to consider all matters
presented to the Board for consideration. This meeting is open to the public. Due to public health and safely concerns related to
COVID-19, and in accordance with the Senate and Assembly bills (3.50001/A.40001), the meeting will be also be held Zoom,
Join Zoom Meeting: hiips://us06web.zoom.us/i/843 19780942 2pwi=ZDdobIFh WRDW Y2t UeERzZNzCGxbHI2 7709

Meeting 1D; 843 1978 0942, Passcode: 572769, Dial by your location: I 646 558 8656

Find your local number: hitps:/us0Gweb.zoom.uswkimSVW8raA

Dated: February 15, 2022 Sarah Sterling Secretary, Columbia Economic Development Corporation

CEDC Beard of Directors Agenda

Members:
Ruth Adams Taral Gay Carmine Pierro
Joseph Benson Derek Grout Seth Rapport
James Calvin James Lapenn Richard Scalera
Richard Cummings John Lee Sarah Sterling
Carlee Drummer Kenneth Leggett Brian Stickles
David Fingar Michael Molinski
Patricia Finnegan Anita Otey
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13.

Chairman’s Remarks
Audit & Firance Committee
a. 2021 Audir*
2021 Full Board Evaluation*
2021 Investment Report®
Statement of Assessment of Internal Controls*
PARIS Report
Minuges, February 22, 2022
President/CEQO Report

a.  Treasurer’s Report*

b. CEDC Activities Update
Executive Committee {No meeting was held)
Governance & Nominating Committee

a. Board Candidates*

Loan Committee

a. Porifolio Report Review*

b.  Creature of Habit Loan Request*

c. The Gilded Larger Loan Request®
Workforce and Education Committee

a. Project Updates
Public Comments

Attachments:

2021 Audit

Statemeni of Assessment of Internal Conirols

Portfolio Review

2021 Full Board Evaluation

February 22, 2022 minutes

Creature of Habit Loan Request

2021 Investment Report

Treasurer’s Report

The Gilded Larder Loan Request

*  Requires Approval

One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718

www.columbiaede.com
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Tuesday, February 22, 2022
One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301
Hudson, NY 12534

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC) Board of Directors
was held in person and via Zoom at their office located at One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534
on February 22, 2022, The meeting was called to order at 8:32 a.m. by David Fingar, Chait.

© o AttendeeMName  f o amide o o Status | Amived/ Departed .
Ruth Adams Board Member Excused

Joseph Benson Board Member Present

James Calvin Vice-Chair Excused

Richard Cunmmings Board Member Excused

Carlee Drummer Board Member — Ex-Officio Present via Zoom
David Fingar Chair Present

Patricia Finnegan Board Member Present via Zoom
Tarah Gay Board Member Present

Derek Grout Board Member Excused

James Lapenn Board Member Present

John Lee Treasurer Excused

Kenneth Leggett Board Member Present

Michael Molinski Board Member Excused

Auita Otey Board Member Present via Zoom
Carmine Pierro Board Member — Ex Officio Excused

Seth Rapport Board Member Present via Zoom
Richard Scalera Board Member — Ex Officio Excused

Sarah Sterling Secretary Present

Brian Stickles Board Member Present via Zoom
Andy Howard CEDC Atlorney Present

F, Michael Tucker President/CEQ Present

Lauren Cranna Business Development Pariner Present

Lisa Drahushuk Administrative Supervisor Present

Martha Lane Business Development Director Present

Cathy Lyden Bookkeeper Present

Minutes, January 25, 2022:
Mr. Leggell made a motion, seconded by My, Lapenn to approve the minutes as presented fiom January 235,
2022, Carried,

2021 Operations and Accomplishments:

Mr, Fingar asked for a motion to approve the 2021 Operations and Accomplishments. Ay Lapenn made a
motion, seconded by Ms. Gay fo approve the 2021 Operations and Accomplisiments Report as presented.
Carried.

One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 125341 518.828.4718
www.columbiaedc.com
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2021 Mission Statement and Performance Measurement Report
With no questions presented, Mr. Fingar asked for a motion to approve the report as presented. Ms. Gay made
a motion, seconded by My, Lapenn. Carried.

2022 Mission Statement and Measurement Goals for 2022:
With no changes presented, Mr. Fingar called for a motion to approve the document as presented. Mr. Leggeft
made a motion, seconded by Ms. Sterling to approve the document as presented. Carried

Treasurer’s Report:

Mr, Tucker reviewed the draft financials with the Board. He explained several of the different reports that can
be obtained from the new software. Ie noted there were no grant income in the current budget, noting he
anticipated some from the Return Brewing project as well as the Farm Housing grants.

Mr. Laperm made a motion, seconded by Mr. Leggetf to approve the Treasurer’s Report as presented. Carried,

CEDC/Columbia County IDA Contract:

Mr. Tucker asked for Board approval on the CEDC/Columbia County IDA contract for 2022, He noted the base
fee had remained the same with an increase in the fee charged on projects. He noted CEDC would charge 20%
on fees over $100,000 up to a maximum of $10,000 per project. Mr. Lapenn made a motion, seconded by Mr.
Leggett to approve the contract as presenfed. Carried.

President/CEO Report:

Mr, Tucker noted Ms, Lyden was currently working with the auditors. He noted Mrs. Drahushuk was working
on the PARIS report supported by Ms, Lane and Ms. Cranna. He thanked the staff for their work. He noted four
new projects had come to him in the past week.

Mr. Tucker reviewed three payments that he was seeking Board approval for: a check in the amount of $10,000
for broadband phase 2 reimbursement, the $15,000 for CGCC Career Connections and $8,000 to Pattern for
Progress housing study. Ms. Sterling made a motion, seconded by Mr. Lapenn fo approve the payments.
Carried.

Mr, Tucker reminded the Board he was reviewing the small solar project on behalf of the County. He stated he
was determining who would be sending the yearly invoices out to the project owners. He stated he would keep
the Board informed.

M. Tucker stated a housing conference would be held on March 30 at either 4:00 or 6:00pm. He noted the
CEDC annual meeting would be held on April 26", He stated his preference was to hold an in person meeting.
He stated work continued on broadband and updated the Board on the recent happenings.

M., Tucker stated the judge had approved HDC’s sale of the former Kaz property. He inforimed the Board the
City of Hudson IDA had approved projects totaling 78 million dollars in 2021, He noted the County IDA was
finalizing Klocke Distillery project and began work on the 178 Healey project in Greenport. He updated the
Board on the Hudson DRI about a food hub in partnership with HVADC.

M., Tucker stated he had met with Dr. Spindler the new Hudson City School District Superintendent, who had
agreed to attend the next Workforce and Education Committee. He noted Ms, Finnegan was assisting in finding
a person from the hospital to replace her on the Board.

Mr. Tucker gave an overview on the ARPA funds and the possible usages. He introduced Columbia Forward,
the new program to assist businesses recover from COVID and support future business expansion and growth.
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Governance & Nomination Committee:

Slate of Directors —~ Annual Meeting:

Ms. Sterling noted there were currently two candidates up for election, and the committee was seeking new
board candidates to fill the soon to be vacant seats. She asked the Board to forward her their suggestions,

2022 Compliance Calendar:
Ms, Sterting noted the document was in the meeting packet, She asked for a motion to approve the document.
Mr. Fingar made a motion, seconded by Mr. Lapenn to approve the document as presented. Carrvied.

Committee Appointment- New Member:
Ms. Sterling noted Mr. Benson had been appointed to the Audit and Finance Committee,

Board Candidates Update:
Ms. Stetling stated three candidates would be interviewed on March 2" at a special meeting. Mr. Tucker noted
the Committee was also reviewing all Committee Charters for uniformity and accuracy.

Loan Committee:

Portfolio Review:

Ms. Lane reviewed the portfolio for the board. She noted she was working with 711 County Route 3 and would
be giving them a four month deferment and technical assistance. She the other clients had made payments. Ms,
Lane informed the Board the Hudson VFW bridge loan had closed. Ms. Sterling made a motion, seconded by
Ms. Gay fo approve the Porifolio Report as presented. Carried.

The Alander Loan Request:

Ms. Cranna stated the request was for a $30,000 SBA loan and a $35,000 CEDC loan at a 5% interest rate and
72 month term, to be used for materials and working capital. The proposed collateral was a second mortgage on
the business and the personal guaranty of the principals. Mr. Leggel! made a motion, seconded by Mr. Lapenn
fo approve the loan as presented. Carried.

Tivoli Mushroom Change in Collateral:

Ms. Lane reminded the Board that CEDC had a first mortgage on the property as well as a lien on the equipment
to cover their $75,000 loan, She stated HVADC would be approving a $100,000 loan to the company and wanted
to take the equipment as collateral on the proposed loan. Ms. Lane asked the Board to approve the change in
collateral, Ms. Sterling made a motion, seconded by Mr. Lapenn to release the lien on the equipment as
requested. Carried.

With no other business fo be conducted, and no public comment, Mr. Legget! made a motion, seconded by Mr.
Lapenn to adjourn the meeting, Carried. The meeting adjourned at 9:37am.

Respectfully submitted by Lisa Draftushul,

One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718
www.columbiaede.com




Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Criteria

Agree

Somewhat
Agree

Somewhat
Disagree

Disagree

#

#

#

#

Board members have a shared understanding
of the mission and purpose of the Authority.

13

4

The policies, practices and decisions of the
Board are always consistent with this mission.

16

2

Beoard members comprehend their role and
fiduciary respensibilities and hold themselves
and each other to these principles.

15

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance,
management and operations of the Authority
and reviews these annually.

17

The Board sets clear and measurable
performance goals for the Authority that
contribite o accomplishing its mission.

15

The decisions made by Board membears are
arrived at through independent judgment and
deliberation, free of political influence cr self-
interest.

16

Individual Board members communicate
effectively with executive staff so as to be well
informed on the status of all important issues.

18

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority's prograims, financial statements,
reporting requirements, and other transactions.

15

The Board meets to review and approve all
documents and reports prior to public release
and is confident that the information being
presented is accurate and complete.

17

The Board knows the statutory obligations of
the Authority and if the Authority is in
compliance with state iaw.

16

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deiiberate and thorough discussion, and the
active participation of members.

16

Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before
decisions are made and votes taken.

15

individual Board members feel empowered to
delay votes, defer agenda items, or fable
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.

16

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of
the CEO and other executive staff, including
setting performance expectations and
reviewing performance annually.

15

The Board has identified the areas of most risk
to the Autherity and works with management to
imptement risk mitigation strategies before
problems occur,

15

Beard members demonstrate leadership and
vision and work respectfully with each other.

15

Name of Authority; _Columbia Economic Development Corp

Date Completed: _3/10/22
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DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
2021 Investment Report

In accordance with Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law; Sections 10, 11 and 858-
a of General Municipal Law, the Columbia Economic Development Corporation has
prepared an annual Investment Report for 2021.

The Columbia Economic Development Corporation Investment Policy was originally
approved on February 5, 2015, with the latest revision made on April 20, 2021.

The Policy was amended on April 20, 2021, Section VII was corrected to reflect the
removal of an unused Authorized Depository. No other amendments were made since
the policy was reviewed and re-adopted on January 28, 2021,

The amended and approved Investment Policy has been attached to this document as
Schedule A,

The 2021 Annual Financial Audit is attached as Schedule B.

The Corporation generated $2172.84 in interest income for the period Januvary 1, 2021 —
December 31, 2021.

Bank Name Amount Generated Fees
Community Bank $1125.56 $990.00
Key Bank $154.75 $ 2854.99
The Bank of Greene County $256.53 $0.00

Berkshire Bank $ 636.00 $0.00
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
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INVESTMENT POLICY
Seope

This investment policy applies to all moneys and other financial resources available for
investment by the Columbia Economic Development Corporation (the “Corporation”).

Objectives

The primary objectives of the Corporation’s investment activities are, in priority order.

To conform with all applicable federal, state and other legal requirements;
To adequately safeguard principal,

To provide sufficient liquidity to meet all operating requirements; and

To obtain a reasonable rate of return.

Delegation of Authority

The responsibility for administration of the investment program is delegated to the
President/CEO who shall establish procedures, subject to Board approval, for the
operation of the investment program consistent with these investment goidelines. Such
procedures shalf include an adequate internal control structure to provide a satisfactory
level of accountability based on a database or records incorporating description and
amounts of investments, transaction dates, and other relevant information.

Prudence

All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of
the public trust and shall avoid any transaction that might impair public confidence in the
Corporation.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing,
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of
their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the safety of the
principal as well as the probable income to be derived.

Consistent with CEDC’s Conflict of Interest policy, all participants involved in the
investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with
proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make
impartial investment decisions.

Diversification
It is the policy of the Corporation to diversify its deposits and investments by financial

institution such that the Corporation’s deposits and investments do not exceed FDIC
coverage and collateral pledged by such institution.
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Internal Controls

It is the policy of the Corporation that all moneys collected by any officer or employee of
the Corporation be transferred to the President/CEO or his designee within 5 days of
receipt for deposit into the Corporation’s account.

The President/CEQ is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that deposits and investments
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are
executed in accordance with management’s authorization and recorded properly, and are
managed in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Designation of Authorized Depositories

The banks and trust companies authorized for the deposit of monies :

Depository
Community Bank formerly Kinderhook Bank

Key Bank formerly First Niagara Bank
The Bank of Greene County
Berkshire Bank

Collateralizing of Deposits

In accordance with the provisions of General Municipal Law, §10, all deposits of the
Corporation, including certificates of deposit and special time deposits, in excess of the
amount insured under the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act shall be
secured by a pledge of “eligible securities” with an aggregate market value, as provided
by General Municipal Law, §10, equal to the aggregate amount of such deposits (a list of
eligible collateral securities are included as Appendix A to this policy).

Safekeeping and Collateralization

Eligible securities used for collateralizing deposits shall be held by the depositaries trust
department and/or a third party bank or trust company subject to securify and custodial
agreements,

The security agreement shall provide that eligible securities are being pledged to secure
local government deposits together with agreed upon interest, if any and any costs or
expenses atising out of the collection of such deposits upon default. It shall also provide
the conditions under which the securities may be sold, presented for payment, substituted
or released and the events, which enable the Corporation to exercise its rights against the
pledged securities. In the event that the securities are not registered or inscribed in the
name of the local government, such securities shall be delivered in a form suitable for
transfer or with an assignment in blank to the Corporation or its custodial bank.




The custodial agreement shall provide securities held by the bank or trust company, or
agent of and custodian for, the local government, will be kept separate and apart from the
general assets of the custodial bank or trust company and will not, in any circumstances,
be commingled with or become part of the backing for any other deposit or other
liabilities. The agreement should also describe that the custodian shall confirm the
receipt, substitution or release of the securities. The agreement shall provide for the
frequency of revaluation of eligible securities and for the substitution of securities when a
change in the rating of a security may cause ineligibility. Such agreement shall include
all provisions necessary to provide the local government a perfected interest in the
securities.

X. Authorized Investments

As authorized by General Municipal Law, §11, the Agency authorizes the President/CEO
to invest moneys not required for immediate expenditure for terms not to exceed its
projected cash flow needs in the following types of investments:

Special time deposit accounts;

Certificates of deposit;

Obligations of the United States of America;

Obligations guaranteed by agencies of the United States of America where the
payment of principal and interest are guaranteed by the United States of America;
s Obligations of the State of New York

* Money market/savings

. * & 0

All investment obligations shall be payable or redeemable at the option of the
Corporation within such times as the proceeds will be needed to meet expenditures for
purposes for which the moneys were provided and, in the case of obligations purchased
with the proceeds of bonds or notes, shall be payable or redeemable at the option of the
Corporation within one year of the date of purchase.

XI. Quarterly Reporting Requirements

Each quarter, at the regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the Corporation’s Board of
Trostees, the Treasurer shall prepare a report of the Corporation’s cash and investment
balances as of the last day of the preceding month or a later date, if available. At a
minimum such report shall contain:

¢ The name of each financial institution

¢ Type of account (checking, savings, certificate of deposit, etc.)
o Current rate of interest

e Account balance as of the last day of the previous month

THIS POLICY SHALL BE REVIEWED AND ADOPTED ANNUALLY.




APPENDIX A

Schedule of securities eligible for collateralization of Corporation deposits:

L

1.

II1.

V.

VI

VIL

VIIIL

IX.

Obligations issued, or fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and
interest, by the United States of America, an agency thereof or a United States
government sponsored corporation.

Obligations partially insured or guaranteed by any agency of the United States of
America, at a proportion of the Market Value of the obligation that represents the amount
of the insurance or gnaranty.

Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by the State of New York, obligations
issued by a Municipal Corporation, school district or District Corporation of such State or
obligations of any public benefit corporation that under a specific State statue may be
accepted as security for deposit of public moneys.

Obligations issued by states (other than the State of New York) of the United States rated
in one of the three highest rating categories by at least one nationally recognized
statistical rating organization,

Obligations of Puerto Rico rated in one of the three highest rating categories by at least
one nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Obligations of counties, cities and other governmental entities of a state other than the
State of New York having the power to levy taxes that are backed by the full faith and
credit of such governmental entity and rated in one of the three highest rating categories
by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Obligations of domestic corporations rated in one of the two highest rating categories by
at least one nationally statistical rating organization.

Any mortgage related securities, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, which may be purchased by banks under the limitations established by bank
regulatory agencies.

Commercial paper and bankers® acceptances issued by a bank, other than the Bank, rated
in the highest short term category by at [east one nationally recognized statistical rating
organization and having maturities of not fonger than 60 days from the date they are
pledged.

Zero coupon obligations of the United States government marketed as “Ireasuty Strips”.
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Statement of the Effectiveness of Internal Control

This Statement of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls was adopted by the Board of Directors
of the Columbia Economic Development Corporation, (the “Corporation”), a public benefit
corporation established under the laws of the State of New York, on this the 25" day of January,

2021.
Purpose

To satisfy the requirement of Section 2800 (1)(a)(9) and Section 2800 (2)(a)(9) of Public
Authorities Law, the Corporation has prepared the following statement:

Statement of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls

This statement certifies that the Columbia Economic Development Corporation followed a
process that assessed and documented the adequacy of its internal control structure and policies
Jor the year ending December 31, 2021.

To the extent thai deficiencies were identified, the Corporation has developed corrective action
plans to reduce any corresponding risk.




Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC)

Balance Sheet
As of February 28, 2022
Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
Checking and Savings
1032-00 Hudson Bonds Accounts
Key Bank - Hudosn Bonds Awards 4,987
Key Bank - Hudson Bonds 8,900
Totai 1032-00 Hudson Bonds Accounts S 13,887
Grants Cash Accounts
Key - BTCF County Grant 9,534
Key - Germantown Grants / GF 0
Total Grants Cash Accounts S 9,534
Loan CEDC Cash Accounts
1000-02 Loan Community Ckg 648 28,860
1020-01 1003-Community Svgs DM 5C 748,429
Total Loan CEDC Cash Accounts $ 777,289
Loan SBA Cash Accounts
1100-01 SBA Key - RLF #3 30,185
1100-02 SBA Key - RLF #4 22,023
1100-03 SBA Bank of Greene Cty - RLF #5 69,887
1100-07 SBA Bank of Greene Cty - RLF #6 87,117
1100-10 SBA Key - RLF #7 42,302
1100-11 SBA Key - RLF #38 32,213
1100-13 1100-13 - SBA - Key - RLF #9 25
Total Loan SBA Cash Accounts s 283,752
Operating Bank Accounts
1000-00 Checking -Key Bank (4176} 27,683
1001-00 Key - PPP/EIDL. Account 121
1021-00 Key Bank - Gold MM Savings 193,492
1032.00 Berkshire Bank 154,075
Total Operating Bank Accounts $ 375,371
Reserve CEDC Cash Accounts 63
1031-00 BOGC - Reserve 213,265
Savings (3966) 0
Total 1031-00 BOGC - Reserve $ 213,265
Total Reserve CEDC Cash Accounts $ 213,328




Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC)
Balance Sheet
As of February 28, 2022

Reserve SBA Cash Accounts

1100-04 Key Bank - LLR #3 21,085
1100-05 Key Bank - LLR #4 13,054
1100-06 Bank of Greene County - LLR #5 40,105
1100-08 Bank of Greene County - LLR #6 42,127
1100-09 Key Bank - LLR #7 37,600
1100-12 Key Bank - LLR #8 45,000
1100-14 1100-14 SBA - Key Banl - LLR #9 25
Total Reserve SBA Cash Accounts S 199,006
Total Checking and Savings $ 1,872,167
Loan Kinderhook Ckg 648 -1,451
SBA Bank of Greene Cnty RLF #6 -700
Total Bank Accounis $ 1,870,016

Accounts Receivable
1115-13 Project Hudson

Due from County

Total Accounts Receivable S
Other Current Assets
12000 *Undeposited Funds -1,031

1208 Due from MicroBusiness Pr 0
1251-15 Prepaid expense 0
1270-01 prepaid Exp 0
A/R - Microbiz Advance 0
Accounts Receivable 0
1115-01 Lincoin Funeral Train 0
1115-06 SBAT/A 73,352
1115-07 Columbia County 76,667
1115-08 Goat Grant 0
1115-09 Hudson DA 8,566
1115-10 Due from HBC ‘ 1,275
1115-11 City Council - Shared Streets 2,500
1115-12 Columbia County Broadband 20,000
1203 Columbia County IDA ' 4,000
1204 CRC 571

1214 Rail Trail
1215 Howard Freeman
1216 BTCF Income




Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC)
Balance Sheet
As of February 28, 2022

Due from Loan fund 0
Total Accounts Receivable A S 186,931
CEDC - Loan Funds -69,482

CEDC- 01 1,059,083
Total CEDC - Loan Funds $ 989,601
Loans Receivable

SBA RLF - 03 0

SBARLF-04 31,205

SBA RLF - 06 126,118

SBARLF-08 287,053

SBA RLF -07 189,740

SBA RLF-05 75,611
Total Loans Receivable S 709,728
Undeposited Funds 0

Total Other Current Assets S 1,885,229
Total Current Assets $ 3,755,245
Fixed Assets

Commerce Park Land 0
’ Property & Capitalized Assets -5,203

1500-01 Furniture 8,687
1500-02 Computers & Equipment 22,720
1500-03 Website 10,037
1500-04 Equipment 2,616
1600-00 Accumulated depreciation -26,027

Total Property & Capitalized Assets S 12,740
Total Fixed Assets $ 12,740
Other Assets

2300 Security Deposit 3,200

Allowance for Bad Debt Loans -45,518

12380-01 Atlowance for loan loss -130,533

1280-03 SBA Bad Debt Reserve -102,182
Total Allowance for Bad Debt Loans -$ 278,233
CERC MicroLoans

Bad Debt Reserve 0
Total CEDC MicroLoans $

Comm. Pk Land Sale Recv.
1265-03 Harpis 9,918




Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC)
Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2022
Total Comm, Pk Land Sale Recv. S 9,918
Grants Receivable : .
1260-02 Flanders (Grant) (deleted) 200,000
1260-06 1247 L/R Angello's Distributing 17,559
Total Grants Recelvable S 217,559
Total Other Assets S 47,557
TOTAL ASSETS S 3,720,429
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilitles
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000-01 *Accounts Payable 19,824
Total Accounts Payable 3 19,824
Other Current Liabilities
2000-02 Recruitment Exp - Due to RS 0
2008 Loan Payable - PPP #2 0
2009 Loan payable - PPP 0
2050-01 Payroll Liabilltles 0
Accounts payable ., other 3,688
Accrued Expenses
2115-01 Aflac \ 0
2115-02 Paid Family Leave 737
2115-03 Pension 1,834
2115-04 Vac buy back 5,564
2120-01 Application Fees {Net Advance) 3,674
Total Accrued Expenses 5 11,808
Deferred Revenue 0
21100 -BTG Sol Cny Sudent Conect 5,237
2400-04 Deferred Membership fees 0
2400-05 Deferred CCounty money 0
2400-06 Berkshire Taconic Grant 0
2400-08 Other Current Liabilities 45,000
Total Deferred Revenue S 50,237
due to CRC 0
Due to SBA 0
Escrow Held 0

Germantown Hamlet Park




Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC)
Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2022
Hamlet Park Exp. 0
Hamiet Park Income ' 0
Total Germantown Hamlet Park S 0
HBC Liability 14,670

Land Deposit
2300-04 Keyser Realty, LLC 0
Keyser Realty, LLC Exp. 0
0
0

Total 2300-04 Keyser Realty, LLC S
Total Land Deposit S
Total Other Current Liabilities S 80,404
Total Current Liabilities S 100,227
Long-Term Liabilities
2010 Loan payable - EIiDL 104,000
Debt Reserve
2056 Hudson Dev. Corp Debt Reserve 10,000
Total Debt Reserve S 10,000

Due to Columbia Cty Land Sale
2500-01 Harpis 0
Total Due to Columbia Cty Land Sale S 0
0
0

Loans Payable to SBA
2600-02 Loan Payable - SBA #4

2600-03 Loan Payable - SBA#5 60,995
2600-04 Loan Payable - SBA #6 165,000
2600-05 Loan Payable - SBA RLF #7 220,277
2600-06 Loan Payaable - SBA RLF 8 315,000
Total Loans Payable to SBA S 761,272

Long term Deferrd Revenue
Def Rev. - GOSC 267ED760-11
2400-02 Def. Rev HVCreamery (Loan)

Total Def Rev, - GOSC 267ED760-11 $
Deferred rev.CDBG-267ED424-02
2400-03 2549 Angello's Distributing, | 17,559
Total Deferred rev.CDBG-267ED424-02 $ 17,559
Total Long term Deferrd Revenue $ 17,559
Total Long-Term Liabilities S 892,830
Total Liabilities s 993,058

Equity

18




Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC)
Balance Sheet
As of February 28, 2022

3200-01 Invested in Capital Assets 12,740
Net assets Restricted
1110 R SBA Microloan 277,003
3100-01 County Directed 48,889
3100-02 R-Net Assests Empire Zone 0
3100-03 R- Net Assets- Comm Prk Princip 71,817
3100.07 - LF Net Assets 0
3900 LF Net Assets (RE} 0
loan fund transfer equity 0
Total Net assets Restricted S 397,709
Net Assets-Temporarily Restrict 0
Unrestricted Net Position 2,296,962
Net Income 19,961
Total Equity s 2,727,371

TOTAL LIABILITIES-AND EQUITY $ 3,720,429




Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC)
Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2022 - FY22 PL
January-February 2022

Total
" Actual Budget over Budget % of Budget
[ncome
5800 Interest Income 10,438.74 11,000.00 -561.26 94.90%
Administrative Revenue 0.00
4050-03 Columbia County IDA 4 060,00 4,000.00 0.00 100.00%
4050-06 Hudson IDA 1,666.56 1,666.67 -0.11 99.99%
Total Administrative Revenue $ 5,666.56 % 5,666.67 -3 0.11% 100.00%
Columbia Gounty 0.00
4000-01 Columbia County Income 76,666.67 76,666.67 0.00 100.00%
Total Columbia Gounty $ 76,666.67 § 76,666.67 $ 0.00 100.00%
Grant Income 0.00
Grant Income - 267ED424-02 1,700.00 -4,700.00 0.00%
4020-03 5023 Loan interest Income 186.85 186.85
4020-04 5024 Loan Recv Principal 1,500.87 1,500.87
Total Grant income - 267ED424-02 $ 1,687.72 $ 1,700.00 -$ 12.28 99.28%
Total Grant Income $ 1,687.72 % 1,700.00 -§ 12,28 99.28%
Grant Income ** 833.34 -833,34 0,00%
Membership/Sponsarship 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.00%
4030-01 Sustaining Membership 5,000.00 5,000.00
4030-02 Full Membership 7,350.00 7,350.00
4030-03 Associate Membership 1,700.00 1,700.00
4030-04 MicroBiz Membership 125.00 125.00
Total Membership/Sponsorship $ 14,175.00 % 10,000.00 $ 4,175.00 141.75%
Other Income .00
4040-01 Other Income 121.07 121.07
4040-02 Bank/Miscellaneous Income 1,353.03 2,006.00 -646.97 67.65%
Bank interest - SBA RLF 0.00
4040-08 Bank Interest - SBARLF 3 0.98 0.98
4040-11 Bank Interest - SBARLF 4 0.68 0.68
4040-14 Bank Interest - SBARLF § 13.63 13.63
4040-18 Bank Intérest - SBARLF 6 7.90 7.90
Total Bank Interest - SBA RLF $ 2319 § 0.00 §$ 23.19
Bank Interest SBA LLR 0.00
4040-06 Bank Interest SBALLR 3 0.69 0.69
4040-09 Bank Interest SBALLR 4 0.42 0.42
4040-12 Bank interest SBALLR 6 77 . 7.77
4040-20 Bank Interest SBA LLR #8 8,17 8.17
Total Bank Interest SBA LLR $ 17.05 $ 0.00 % 17.05
Grant Income * 0.00
Broadband Incom 10,0060.00 10,000.00
Total Grant Income * $ 10,000.00 $ 0.00 - § 10,000.00
Total Other [ncome $ 11,614.34 § 2,0600.00 $ 9,514.34 575.72%
SBA Microloan T/IA 0.00
4040.15 SBA - TIA 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 100.00%
Total SBA Microloan T/IA $ 30,000.00 % 30,000.00 $ 0.00 100.00%
Total Income 5 150,149.03 $ 137,866.68 $ 12,282.35 108.91%
Gross Profit $ 150,149.03 % 137,866.68 $ 12,282.35 108.91%
Expenses
Bad Debt Writeoff 0.00 0.00

Conferences and Training 145.00 145.00




Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC)
Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2022 - FY22 PL
January-February 2022

5080-01 Conference & Training ' 500,00 -500.00 0.00%

Total Conferences and Training $ 145.00 § 500.00 -§ 355.00 29.00%
Consulting ~TSI 0.00
5040-03 5002 Consulting TSI 22,000.00 22,000.00 0.00 100.00%
Total Consuiting -TS! $ 22,000.00 § 22,000,00 $ 0.00 100.00%
Consulting Fees 0.00
5040-02 Consulting Other §,047.56 10,000.00 -3,852.44 80.48%
Total Consulting Fees - 6,047.56 % 10,000.00 -$ 3,952.44 60.48%
Direct Program Expenses 0.00
5070-03 Meetings / Events 1,250.00 -1,250.00 0.00%
Total Direct Praogram Expenses $ 0.00 % 1,250.00 -$ 1,250.00 0.00%
Employer Expenses 0.00
Employer Payroll Taxes 0.00
£010-01 Disabllity 351.83 100.00 251.83 351.83%
5010-03 Medicare 650.36 750.00 -80.64 87.91%
5010-04 Sccial Security 2,819.30 3,258.33 -439.03 86.53%
5010-05 State Unemployment 218.67 -216.67 0.00%
5010-07 Workers Comp. 258.00 -258.00 0.00%
. Total Employer Payroll Taxes $ 3,830,492 § 4,583.00 -$ 752.51 83.58%
Fringe Benefits 0.00
5020-01 Health [nsurance 4,000.00 4,750.00 ~750.00 84.21%
5020-02 Vacation Buy Back 833.32 833.33 -0.01 100.00%
5020-03 Pension 1,833.32 1,833.33 -0.01 100.00%
5020-04 Life Insurance 228.00 500.00 -271.00 45.80%
Total Fringe Benefits $ 6,805.64 $ 7,916.66 -§ 1,021.02 87.10%
Payroll 0.00
5000-02 Business Dev Spec. 10,833.36 10,833.33 0.03 100.00%
5000-04 Boolkkeeper 8,962.50 6,250.00 712.50 111.40%
5000-05 Office Manager 10,416.68 10,416.70 -0.02 100.00%
§000-07 Intern 1,666.67 -1,666.67 0.00%
5000-08 Project Manager 10,833.33 -10,833.33 0.00%
5000-51 Bus Dev Partner 8,583.36 8,750.00 -166.64 98.10%
5000-53 Admin assistant 0.00 2,916.68 -2.916.68 0.00%
Total Payroll $ 36,795.90 $ 51,666.71 -$ 14,870.81 71.22%
Total Employer Expenses $ 47,622.03 % 64,166.37 -$ 16,644.34 74.06%
Facility 0.00
5050-01 Rent 6,724.00 6,724,00 0,00 100,00%
Total Fagility $ 6,724.00 $ 8,724.00 $ 0.00 100.00%
Grants Expense* 1,666.87 -1,666.67 0.00%
[nsurance ) 0.0C
5065-01 [nsurance 2,902.95 3,000.00 -97.05 98.77%
Total Insurance 4 $ 2,90295 $ 3,000.00 -§ 97.05 96.77%
MicroBiz Expenses . 0.00
5150-01 Technical Assistance 4,769.87 6,466.67 -1,696.80 73.76%
5150-02 Marketing 1,980.00 416.67 1,663.33 476.20%
5150-03 Seminars/Workshops 200.00 -200.00 0.00%
Total MicroBiz Expenses $ 6,749.87 & 7,083.34 -§ 333.47 95.29%
New Intiatives 8,333.33 -8,333.33 0.00%
5200-A Workforce & Education 285.00 285.00
5200-D Broadband Study 10,000.00 10,000.00

Total New Intlatives % 10,285.00 § 8,333.33 $ 1,951.67 123.42%



Columbia Economic Development Corporation (CEDC)
Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2022 - FY22 PL
January-February 2022

Office Expense 0.00
5060-01 Comp./Equip & Leasing & Maint. 6,968.67 3,833.34 3,135.33 181.79%
5080-02 Telephone & Fax 475.14 1,083,33 -608,19 43.86%
5080-03 Internet 182.08 233.33 -51.26 78.04%
5060-04 Office Supplies & Printing 396.37 827.34 -430.97 47.91%
5060-05 Dues & Subscriptions 3,605.50 3,500.00 105.50 103.01%
5080-06 Postage 300.00 166.67 133.33 180.00%
5060-08 Web Site 2,012.30 1,000.00 1,012.30 201.23%
Total Office Expense $ 13,940068 § 10,644.01 $ 3,296.05 130.97%
Other Expenses 0.00
5100-01 Miscelianeous Expense 2,583.26 2,000.00 583,26 128.16%
Total Other Expenses $ 2,583.26 % 2,000.00 % 583.26 129.16%
Professiona! Fees 0.00
5030-01 Legal Fees 2475.00 2,166.68 308,32 114.23%
5030-03 Accounting and Audit Fees 3,500.00 -3,500.00 0.00%
5030-04 Payroll Services 361.00 333.34 27.56 108.30%
Total Professional Fees $ 2,836.00 $ 6,000.02 -§ 3,164.02 47.27%
Public Relations/Marketing 0.00
5080-02 Marketing 245.00 3,000.00 -2,755.00 8.17%
Total Public Relations/Marketing $ 245.00 % 3,000.00 -3 2,755.00 8.17%
SBA Interest Expense 166.67 -166.67 0.00%
Total Expenses $ 121,980.73 $ 146,534.41 -$ 24,553.68 83.24%
Net Operating Income $ 28,168.30 -$ 8,6687.73 $ 36,836.03 -324.98%
Other Expenses
Transfer -50.00 ~50.00
Total Other Expenses -$ 50.00 $ 0.00 -$ 50.00
Net Cther Income $ 50.00 § 0.00 § 50.00
Net Income $ 28,218.30 -$ 8,667.73 $ 36,886.03 -325.56% \
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UHY
Certified Public Accountants

One Hudson City Centre, Snite 204
Hudson, NY 12534

Phone 518-828-1565
Fax 518-828-2672
Web www.ahy-us.com |

March _, 2022

To the Board of Directors of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation:

We have audited the financial statements of Columbia Economlc Development Corporation as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated March __, 2022,
Professional standards require that we advise you of the followmg matters relat[ng fo our audlt

<

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audlt

As communicated in our engagement letter dafed December 20, 2021, our responsibility, as described
by professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements
that have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material
respects, in accordance with accountmg principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Our audit of the financlal statements does not . reheve you or management of your respective
responsihilities. s 8

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professnonal standards, is to plan and petform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than ‘absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for deS|gn1ng audit procedures that are appropriate I the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s Internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation solely for the purpose of determining our audit
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such intetnal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibliities in overseeing the financial reporfing process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.

We have provided our findings regarding a slgnificant control deficiency over financlal reporting and
non-compliance with the completeness and accuracy of the Corporation’s schedule of federal awards
noted during our audit in separate reports to you dated March __, 2022.




Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated
to you.

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team and others In our firm, as appropriate have complied with all relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, We have applied a safeguard which included a quality control
partner review to the independence threat of our preparation of the Organization's financial statements
and preparation of the Organization’s annual tax return.

Significant Risks ldentified
We have identified the following significant risks:

s Revenue recognition

s Management override 5
As a result of our audit procedures, we did not identify any dbn{rol defit:ién_cies related to the identified
significant risks above except for the accounting for a/o‘értain CDBG grant that originally was netted
but should have heen grossed up even though it was'a pass_—th_’rough type award.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accouhﬁﬁg Practices
Significant Accounting Policles | |

Management has the responsibility ’_sm_‘éélec;t and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of
the significant accounting policies ‘adopted by Columbia Economic Development Corporation is
included in Note 2 to the financial statemerits., There has been no initial selection of accounting policies
and no changes in significant accounting policies or their application during 2021. No matters have
come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the
methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and {2) the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there Is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. :

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management's current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain
accounting estimates are particutarly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from
management's current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimate affecting the financial statements is the allowance for loan
losses.

Management's estimate of the allowance for loan losses is based on a review of ouistanding loans
receivable on an individual loan basis. Management performs a risk assessment of each loan
consideting collateral, payment history, delinquency slatus, and other matters indicating the
horrower's apility to pay. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the




allowance for loan losses and determined that the estimate is reasonable in relation to the basic
financiai statements taken as a whole.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certalh financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting
Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s financial statements related to the allowance for loan
losses, revenue recoghition, and loans.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of
the audit.

Uncorraected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumuiate all known and
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than-those that we believe are trivial, and
communicate them fo the appropriate leve! of managemerit. Further, professional standards require
us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior petiods on the relevant
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statemenis as a whole.
Uncorrected misstatements or matters underlying those uncbrrected misstatements could potentially
cause future-period financial statements to be materially misstated, even though the uncorrected
misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements currently under audit. The following
summarizes uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects in the current and prior
periads, as defermined by management, are Immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the
financial statements taken as a whole: o

. Increase in miscellaneous expense and accounts payable of $2,666 to record charges
on the Corporation’s credit card in December 2021 not recorded until 2022.

- Decrease the allowance for loan loss and bad debt expense by $42,655, to adjust for
allowance for loan loss calculation,

In addition, professianal standards : require us to communicate to you all material, corrected
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures.
We proposed the following significant adjustment as a resuit of our audit;

- Increase defetred revenue and loans receivable by $45,000
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with managetent as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, which could be significant to Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s financial
statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in a
separate letter dated March __, 2022,




Management's Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations
with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

in the normal course of our professional association with Columbia Economic Development
Corporation, we generally discuss a varlety of matters, including the application of accounting
principles and auditing standards, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and
operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters
discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s
auditors.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties. :

Very truly yours,




COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
EIN 14-17565710

Reports of Independent Auditors Required by Office
Of Management and Budget Uniform Guidance
December 31, 2021
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Chairman and Board of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Fach Major Federal Program

We have audited Columbia Economic Development Corporation's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s
major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2021, Columbia Economic Development
Corporation’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. = e

In our opinion, Columbia Economic Development Corporatton comphed ln all material respects, with
the types of comphance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended_Dg_cember 31, 2021,

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program b

the United States of America (GAAS) “the standards appilcabie to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards,: issued:: by the Comptroller General of the Uniled States
(Government Auditing Standards): and. the audit ;requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations {CFR) Part 200, Uniform: Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Gutdance) Our responsibilities under those standards
and the Uniform Guidance are further descnbed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of: our report. '-_.'\

i
We are required io be mdependent 0f Columbia Economic Development Corporation and to meet
our other ethical responsmlllties, in accordance with relevant ethical regulrements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a
legal determination of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective Internal control over compliance with the

requirements of laws, statutes, regulations rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s federal programs.

A member of UHY International, a network of independent accounting and consuiiting firms.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s compliance based on our audit.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompiiance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from etror, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred io above is considered
material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Columbia Economic
Development Corporation’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole,

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Audrtrng Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we: .

+ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professsonal skepttcism throughout the audit.

» |dentify and assess the risks of material noncompllance whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regardmg ‘Columbia Economic Development
Corporation’s compliance with the compliance : requrrements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered. necessary in the circumstances.

+ Obtain an understanding of Columbia Economlc Development Corporation’s internal control
over compirance relevant to the audlt n order to” design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances and to test’ and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with the Uniform Gurdance but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion
on the effactiveness of Columbla Economlc Development Corporation’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such oplmon is.expressed.

We are required to communicate wrth those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and tlmlng .of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in mternat_c?pntrol over compliance that we identified during the audit,

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to
be reporied in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-01. Our opinion on each major federal
program is not modified with respect to this matter. Government Auditing Standards requires the
auditor to perform limited procedures on Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s response
to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs, Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s response was not
subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify

afl deficiencles in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
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deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we did identify a
deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basls. A malerial weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficlency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questions costs as item 2021-01 to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal. control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit atiention by those charged with governahc"e

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressmg an op:n;on on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed

Govermnment auditing standards requires the audltor to perform limited procedures on Columbia
Economic Development Corporation's response to the:internal control over compliance findings
identified in our audit as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Columbia Economic Development Corporation's response was not subjected to the other auditing
procedures applied in the audit of complrance and accordmgfy, we express no opinion on the
response. o

The purpose of this report on mternal control over compllance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over comp!iance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accord:ngly, _thls report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expendltures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the fmancsai statements of Columbia Economic Development Corporation as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2021 and have issued our report thereon dated March
2022, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was
conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was detived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting procedures and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Hudson, New York
March __, 2022
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

To the Chairman and Board of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Columbia Economic
Development Corporation's basic financial statements, and have |ssued our report thereon dated
March __, 2022.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements we conmdered Columbia Economic
Development Corporation’s interna! control over financial reporting (mternaE control) as a basis for
designing procedures that are appropriate in the cwcumstances for the purpose of expressmg our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the ‘purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s internal control, Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the eﬁectiveness of Columbta Econormc Development Corporation’s
internal control, -

A deficiency in internal control exists when the demgn or operahon of a contral does not allow
management or employees in the normal ‘course of. performmg their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a: tlmeiy basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in infernal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's: ﬁnanCIaI statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A s:gmfrcanf deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that'is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged W|th governance

Our consideration of |nternal -c___o_ntrol was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficlencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial repotting that we consider to be material weaknesses.
We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses as item 2021-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A member of UHY international, a nelwork of independent accounting and consulting firms,
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Columbia Economic Development
Corporation’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s Response to Findings

Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s response to the findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. Columbia Economic
Development Corporation’s response was nol subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no____qpihion on it.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the.scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is:an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is:not suitable for any other purpose.

Hudson, New York
March __, 2022
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Federai
Assistance
Federal Grantor/Program Title/Pass Through Federal Listing/CFDA
Entity Program Award # Expenditures Number
Small Business Administration
SBA Microloan
Program 4843855005 $ 28,072
6272215007 111,227
8503645004 207,778
3895287001 250,000
8388508207 300,000
Total SBA Microloan Program 897,077 59.046
Economic injury
Disaster Loan 7823108108 100,000 59,008
Total Economic Injury Disaster l.oan o 100,000
Technical S
Assistance SBAOCAML210267 54,104
< BBAOCAML200055 86,493 59.007
Total Technical Assistance Program o R 140,697
Total Small Business Administration .~ 1,437,674
Department of Housing and Urban Development e
Pass through - County of Columbia, New York iy
Community "
CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster Development
LU0, Blook Grant 267TED915-18 45,000 14.218
Total CDBG Enlitlement Grants Cluster 45,000
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 45,600
$ 1,182,674

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See indelpendent auditor's report and accompanying notes to Schedule of Federal Awards.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
December 31, 2021

NOTE 1 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Scheduls”) has been
prepared as required under the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance. The
purpose of the schedule is to present a summary of those activities of Columbia Economic
Development Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2021 using the accrual basis of
accounting. For purposes of this schedule, federal awards include any assistance provided by a
federal agency directly or indirectly in the form of grants, contracts, ccoperative agreements, direct
appropriations, loans and loan guarantees, and other noncash assistance. Because the schedule
presents only a selected portion of the activities of the Organization, it is not intended to, and does
not, present either the financial position, or statement of activities and other changes in net assets of
the Organization.

NOTE 2 ~ INDIRECT COSTS

Indirec! costs are charged to federal granis and contracts when appiicable at a predefermined rale
and the Organization has elected to use the 10 percent de- mlnlmis indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance. e

NOTE 3 —~ SUB-RECIPIENTS

None of the federal awards presented in the accompanymg scheduse of expenditures of federal
awards were provided to sub-recipients for the year ended December 31, 2021,

See independent auditors’ report and schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Views of Responsible Official
December 31, 2021

A. Summary of Audit Resuits

Financial Statements:

Type of auditors' report issued Unmaodified
Basis of accounting GAAP
Internal control over financial reporting

Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be

material weaknesses? Yes
Noncompliance material to financial statements? No

Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:

Material weaknesses identified? L ..."":"Y.E_’s
Significant deficlencies identified that are not consrdered to be
material weaknesses? . o No -

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major

programs : Unmodified
Any audit findings required to be reported in. accordance W|th

Uniform Guidance Section 200, 516(3) b Yes, 2021-01

Major Programs:

...... Federal
Assistance
Listing /
) E CFDA Federal
... Grant Title number Expenditures
Small Business Administration — SBA Microloan Program 50.046 $897,077

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs $750,000

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? No
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Views of Responsible Official
December 31, 2021

B. Findings Related to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

FINDING 2021-001

Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Financial Reporting — Community
Development Block Grant {CDBG)

Criteria:

The Corporation is responsible for ensuring its financial statements are recorded in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAPR).

Condition:

The Corporation entered info an agreement with Columbia County to administer a Gommunity
Development Block Grant (CDBG) to a local business, however, the Corporation failed fo
properly record the grant transactions within its general -ledger based on the underlying
contracts. The grant is in the form of a forgivable loan which'is forgivable after five years if
certain conditions are met. A loan receivable asset and liability to County for CDBG grant
receivable should have heen recorded. : .

Cause;

Management’'s review procedures in this’ mstance were not sufficient to ensure that this
transaction was recorded completely and accurately o

Effect or Potentia! Effect:

The Corporation’s financial steift__éments'_'.c‘bul_d be -iilnderstated and not in conformity with GAAP.

Recommendation:

Management sho_uid'”impiemén-t a review procedure that ensures all CBDG grant activity is
recorded accurately throughout the year prior to the start of the audit.

Responsible Official’'s Response:

In the future, the Corporation will be more conscious of contacting the auditor for guidance when
a new program is initiated.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Views of Responsible Official
December 31, 2021

C. Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to the Compliance Audit of Major Programs that
are Required to be Reported by Uniform Guidance Section 516(a)

FINDING 2021-01: Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

information on the Federal Program — CFDA 14.218 (Department of Housing and Urban
Development —~Community Development Block Grant)

Criteria — Management is responsible for identifying all federal funds required 1o be disclosed on
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Compliance Requirement - Reporting

Condition — A program was required to be added to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards nat identified by management.

Questioned Costs — Nohe

Context — The Organization is responsible for implementing 'ééhtrois and procedures to ensure
all expenditures paid for by federal funding are mcluded ‘on its: ScheduEe of Expenditures of
Federal Awards. : o

Cause — Management failed to ascertain the existe_n"c’e of all federally fUhded pragrams for
inclusion on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards in their process of preparation.

Repeat Finding — No e
Effect — The Schedule of Expenditures of Féﬂerél.AWard:g_Wés materially misstated.

Recommendation — We recommeﬁd manag'eﬂm'éht develop processes to fully ensure that all
federal award activity is identified, !racked and reported as appropriate on the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards :

Responsible Official’s. Response F. Michael Tucker, PresidentfCEO. See corrective action

plan on page 11.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairman and Board of
Columbia Economic Development Garporation:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Columbia Economic Development Corporation {a not-
for-profit component unit of the County of Columbia, New York) {the “Corporation™), as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes fo the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. 2

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements preseht fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of Columbia Economic Development Corporation as of December 31,
2021 and the respective changes In financial position qnc’j, ‘where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. < o

Basis for Opinion P
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (BAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the COmptrplEer General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are furthef described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our repoft. We are required to be independent of Columbia
Economic Development Corporation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, In accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management fo'f the Financial Statements

Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s management is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Columbia
Economic Development Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the
date the financial statements are available {o be issued.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditot's
report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS will aiways detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whather
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

« Obtain an understanding of intetnal controi relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements, e

« Conclude whether, in our professional jUdgm,am, there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Columbia Economic Development
Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate witp'ihose ohafged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally. 'éccepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and .analysis on pages 4 to 7 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such Information is the responsibility of management and, although nat a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of Amerlca, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March __,
2022 on our consideration of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is salely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal controt over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financlal reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Columbia Economic Development Corporation's internal control
over financtal reporting and compiiance.

Report on Summarized Comparative information

We have previously audited Golumbia Economic Development Corporation's 2020 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in our
report dated March 30, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. .~

Hudson, New York
March _ , 2022
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31, 2021

Introduction:

Within this section of the Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s (the “Corporation”)
financial statements, the Corporation's management provides narrative discussion and analysls of
the financial activities of the not-for profit Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2021. This
discussion and analysis Is intended to serve as an Introduction to the Corporation's basic financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Overview of the Financial Statements:

The Corporation's basic financial statements include: (1} financial statements, and (2} notes to the
financial statements.,

Financial Statements:

The Corporation’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board {(GASB). The Corporation is structured as a single enterprise fund with revenues recognized
when earned, not when received. Expenses are recognized when incurred, not when they are paid.
Capital assets are capitalized and are depreciated over their useful fives. See notes to the financial
statements for a summary of the Corporation’s significant accounting policies.

The Statement of Net Position presents infor‘fnétion on the Corporation’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may setve as a useful Indicator of the Corporation’s financlal position.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position presents information showing
how the Corporation's net positién changéd during the most recent year. All changes in net position
are reported as soon as the underlyirig event giving rise to the change oceurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements for
some items that will result in cash flows in future periods.

The Statement of Cash Flows relates to the flows of cash and cash equivalents. Consequently, only
tfransactions that affect the Corﬁoration's cash accounts are recorded in this statement. A
reconciliation is provided at the Bottom of the statement of cash flows to assist in the understanding
of the difference between cash flows from operating activities and operating income.

Notes to Financial Statements:

The accompanying notes to the financlal statements provide information essentlal to a full
understanding of the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights:
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Corporation was able to assist Columbia County
businesses through its loan programs as well as the continuation of a fiscal agent arrangement (see -

note 14). The fiscal agent arrangement was created in an effort to help businesses during the
COVID 19 pandemic.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Companent Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31, 2021

Financial Highlights (Continued):

Net position increased $35,161 during the year ended December 31, 2021. Cperating revenues
decreased $119,244 or 24%, primarily due to a decrease in grant revenue of $142,234 offset by an
increase in interest on loans of $15,721 and an increase of administrative fees of $10,022, Non-
operating activity in 2021 (excluding approptiations) resulted In a gain of $136,495 due to
forgiveness of paycheck protection program loans. Operating expenses decreased $328,897 or
28%, primarily due to a decrease In grant expense of $235,116, a decrease in personnel and
benefits of $41,054, a decrease in consuliing of $36,470, and a decrease in bad debt expense of
$54,176.

Total assets increased by $135,663 or 3.77% and fotal liabilities increased $104,669 or 11.98% for
the year ended December 31, 2021, Cash and cash equivalents was $1,353,199 at December 31,
2021, a decrease of $174,477 from December 31, 2020, Total lans increased by $137,887 to
$1,668,089 presented net of an aifowance for loan loss of $278,233 at December 31, 2021,

Financial Statement Analysis:

Below is a comparative summary of the Corporation’s Statements of Net Position as of December
31 g '

2021 2020

Assets

Capital assets . L $ 12,740 $ 14,340

Current assets S : 2,165,039 1,965,043

Long-term assets o o 1,657,844 1,620,577
Total assets o ' $ 3,735,623 $ 3,689,960
Current liabilities - $ 249,975 $ 265,342
Long-term liabilitie$ 728,163 608,127
Deferred inflow of resources ' 5,237 9,404
Net positton .

Unrestricted 2,271,624 2,274,505

Capital 12,740 14,340

Restricted 467,884 428,242
Total liahilities, deferred inflows, and net position $ 3,735,623 $ 3,588,960
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31, 2021

. Financial Statement Analysis (Continued):

Below is a comparative summary of the Corporation’s statements
Changes in Net Position for the years ended December 31:

of Revenues, Expenses and

2021 2020
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 44,022 $ 34,000
Interest from loans 73,472 57,751
Grant revenues 221,089 363,323
Membership fees 32,992 36,618
Land sale 873 -
Total operating revenues 372,448 491,692
Non-operating revenues
Columbia County appropriation 368,000 391,000
Forgiveness of paycheck protection program loans 132,814 -
Interest earnings L - 3,750 10,854
Total non-operating revenues oA 504,564 401,854
Total revenues 877,012 893,546
Operating expenditures ¢
Personnel and benefits 315,068 356,122
Professional fees 46,419 38,535
Granis 9,654 244,770
Office expense 98,642 89,436
Consulting 167,318 203,788
Marketing 19,689 23,571
New initiatives 61,802 58,814
Bad debt 50,000 104,176
Other operating expenditures - 73,180 51,467
Total operating expenditures 841,782 1,170,679
Nonoperating expenditures
Interest 69 183
Total nonoperating expenditures 69 183
Total expenditures 841,851 1,170,862
Total revenues in excess (deficiency} of expenditures 35,161 (277,316)
Net position at the beginning of the year 2,717,087 2,984,403
Net position at the end of the year $ 2,752,248 $ 2,717,087

The 2021 budget included revenue of $706,000 and expenses of $765,321 with a projected loss of

$59,321.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Gomponent Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dacember 31, 2021

Financial Statement Analysis {Continued):

Total revenues were $171,012 more (24%) than the budget and total expenditures were $76,530
more (10%) than the budget. Total revenues exceeded the budget primarily due to grant revenue
and forgiveness of paycheck protection program loans exceeding the budget by $88,089 and
$132,814, respectively. This was offset by interest on loans, membership fees, and other income not
meeting the budget by $26,528, $17,008, and $10,377, respectively. Total expenses exceeded the
budget primarily due to new initiatives, office expenses, and bad debt exceeding budget by $31,802,
$26,142, and $50,000, respectively, offset by personnel and benefits budget exceeding actual
expense by $50,753.

Additional Information:

This report is prepared for the use of the Corporation’s audit committee, management, federal
awarding agencies and pass through entities, and members of thé public interested in the affairs of
the Corporation. Questions with regard to this financial report or requests for additional information
may be addressed to the President/CEO, Columbia Economic Development Corporation, 1 Hudson

City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534,
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2021
{(with memorandum oniy totals at December 31, 2020)

2020
2021 {memorandum only)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equlvalents $ 4,353,199 $ : 1,628,459
Certiflcate of daposit 153,955 153,439
Restricted cash - fiscal agency 14,670 25,344
Prepald expenses - 2,888
Accounts recelvable 50,675 1,667
Account recelvable - IDA 42,000 6,000
Land sale raceivable, current portion 9,918 9,491
SBA technlcal assistance grant recolvable 43,352 19,282
L.oans recalvable, current portion 527,270 218,473
Tolal curent assets 2,165,038 1,965,043
FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Furniture and equipment, net of $31,320 of
acoumnulated depreciation 12,740 14,340
Total furniture and equipment, nat 12,740 14,340
OTHER ASSETS i o
Restrcted cash 413,825 295,730
Sacurity deposit Y 3,200 3,200
Land sate receivable, long term portion - 5,918
Loans recelvable, less current portion,
net of allowance of $278,233 s 1,140,819 1,311,729
Tolal other assets KN 1,557,844 1,600,677
Total assels 3,735,623 3,599,960
CURRENT LIABILITIES 5
Accounts payable 416,222 28,715
Accrued expenses 8,674 15,581
Due to fiscal agency 14,670 25,344
t.cans payable - PPP and EIDL, current porilon | 50,389 50,388
Loans payable - SBA microloan prograrms, curreit portion 149,833 135,572
Debt reserve deposit P B 10,000 -
Unearnied revenue, current portlon | 9,187 8,741
Totail current liabilities 249,975 265,342
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ]
Loans payable-PPP and EiDL, long-term porilon 49,611 118,311
Loans payable-SBA microloén program, fong-term portior 623,680 481,808
Unearned revenue, long-term porilon - 54,872 18,311
Debt reserve deposit - 10,000
Total non-cuirent liabllitles 728,163 608,127
Total liabllitles 978,138 873,469
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred grant income 5,237 5,237
Defarred membership income - 4,167
Tatal daferred Inflows of resources 5,237 9,404
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 2,271,624 2,274,505
Invested In capltas assets 12,740 14,340
Restricted
Cammerce Park watar lower 71,817 71,817
County directed 48,889 48,889
Columbla Counly Student Connects Program 23,000 8,000
Columbia County Business Continuity Fund Program 15,000 414
SBA micreloan program 306,178 208,122
Total net position $ 2,752,248 [ 2 747,087

See noles to financial stalements.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the year ended December 31, 2021

(with memorandum only totals for the year ended December 31, 2020)

2020
2021 {memorandum oniy)
OPERATING REVENUE
Administrative fees - related party $ 24,000 $ 24,000
Administrative fees - Hudson DA 20,022 ‘ 10,000
Grant revenua 221,089 363,323
interest on loans 73,472 57,751
Membership fees 32,992 36,618
Land sale 873 -
Total operating revenue 372,448 491,692
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel and benefits 315,068 356,122
Grant expense . 9,654 244770
Office expense < 98,642 89,436
Program delivery fees ) 35,442 27,287
Professional fees kR 46,419 38,535
Consuiting _ 167,318 203,788
Meetings and events v 2,620 3,020
Insurance o 2,886 3,001
Markeiing _ 19,689 23,571
Naw initiatives 61,802 58,814
Deptreciation ‘ - 5,293 5427
Bad debt : 50,000 104,176
Miscellaneous o 26,949 12,732
Total operating expenses : . 841,782 1,1?0,679
QOPERATING LOSS ; ' {469,334) (878,987)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Bank Interest . ’ 3,750 10,854
Forgiveness cf paycheck protection program foans 132,814 -
Interest expense and fees ' {69) (183)
Totat Non-Operating Rev(en’ue {Expenses) 136,495 10,871
Appropriation from the County of Columbia, NY 368,000 391,000
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 35,161 (277,316)
NET POSITION, Beginning of year 2,717,087 2,994 403
MET POSITION, End of year $ 2,752,248 $ 2,717,087

See notes to financial statements.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 31, 2021

(with memorandum only totals for the year ended December 31, 2020)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Administrative fees - related party $
Administrative fees - Hudson DA
Principal disbursed on loans receivable
Principal recelved on loans recelvable
Membership contributions
Grant revenue
l.and sale
Interest on loans
Paymenis to employaes
Paymenis o vendors

Net cash used for cperating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES ¢

Appropriation from the County of

Columbia, NY
Proceeds from loans payable - PPP and E{DL
Payments on SBA microloan program
Proceeds from SBA microloan program

Net cash provided by noncapltal financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of cettificate of deposit
Purchase of eguipment
Interest paid
Interest received -

Net cash (used for) provided by Investing activities

2020
2021 {memorandum only)
18,000 $ 18,000
20,022 10,000
(580,400) (671,820)
392,514 550,589
28,825 20,074
234,026 474,768
10,364 -
73,472 57,751
(315,068) (356,122)
{548,616) {666,743}
'(666,861) (6554,503)
368,000 391,000
64,114 168,700
(132,564) (110,125)
300,000 250,000
599,550 699,575
(516) (2,410)
(3,693) (6,235)
(69) (183)
3,750 10,854
(528} 2026

See notes to financial statements,
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York}
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

{with memorandum only totals for the year ended December 31, 2020)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ (67,839) $ 147,088
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year 1,849,533 1,702,435
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year $ 1,781,694 $ 1,848,533
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 1,353,109 $ 1,528,459
Restricted cash - fiscal agency 14,670 25,344
Restricted cash 413,825 295,730
$ 1,781,694 $ 1,849,533
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used for operating activities:
Operating loss $ {469,334)  § (678,987)
Bad debt reserve 50,000 104,176
Depreciation expense . 5,293 5,427
Changes in assets, llabilities, and deferred inflows: .
Prepaids - 2,888 3,435
Loans receivable (187,887) (124,298)
Land sale receivable ' 9,491 -
SBA technical assistance grant receivabie g (24,070) 43,458
Grant receivable . - 62,750
Accounts receivable {49,008) -
Accotmt receivable - IDA - {6,000) (6,000)
Accounts payable (13,493) 8,250
Due to fiscal ageney s {10,674) 25,344
Unearmed revenue 37,007 -
Accrued expenses {6,907) 4,249
Deferred grant Income . - 5,237
Deferred membership Income ‘ (4,167) (7,544)
Net cash used for operating activities $ (666,861) $ {554,503)

i
~

See notes to financial statements.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVEL.OPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 1 -~ NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

Financial Reporting Entity

The Columbia Economic Development Corporation ("CEDC” or the “Corporation”) was organized as
a not-for-profit entity far the purpose of promoting and developing industry and job development in
Columbia County, New York (the “County”). The Corporation is a component unit of the County, is a
separate entity, and operates independently of the Gounty.

Programs of the Corporation

General Operating

The Corporation derives its revenues primarily from Columbia Gounty appropriations and from
administrative fees from related parties such as Columbia County Capital Resource Corporation
("CRC") and Columbia County Industrial Development Agency. ("CCIDA"). The fund also derives
revenue from interest from loan receivables. i

Loan Program

The loan program offers loans to local businesses, often at a discounted interest rate, to attract
business to the County as well as expand business growth from existing businesses already located
in the County. The program funds are also ‘%Jsed to continue offering the Microbusiness seminar
series and is used to fund expenses as it applies fo the administration and delivery of programs.

The foan program receives grant monéy from time to time from CDBG-NYS. As a requirement of the
grant, the loan program awards a contingent grant (usuaily based on employment goals) to local
organizations after meeting certajn NYS grant requirements. If requirements of the grant are not met
by the local organization, the grant converts to a loan. The Corporation treats these arrangements
as loans untli the contingencies are met. As of December 31, 2021, the Corporation's loans
receivables include $245,000 of these loan types comprised of:

Original Loan Balance at
: Loan Balance December 31, 2021
Flanders/Precisionaire Corporation $ 200,000 $ 200,000
Hudson Valley Creamery (CDBG) 45,000 45,000
: $ 245,000 $ 245,000

Flanders/Precisionaire Corporation's loan is expected lo be fully forgiven in 2022 and Hudson Valley
Creamery’s loan Is expected to be fully forgiven in 2026.

Grant money recelved from CDBG-NYS of $45,000 was recorded as deferred revenue as of
December 31, 2021 due to the CDBG grant including conditions that the grantee must met the
employment goals in order for the grant revenue to be earned by the Corporation. Should the
amployment goals not be met, the Corporation would either have to repay the CDBG grant or
request permission to re-grant the funds to another eligible participant.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION (Continued)
Programs of the Corporation (Continued)
CDBG Small Cities

Grant funds received with performance requirements are recorded as unearned revenue in the
period granted. The Corperation records a receivable for the amount of the loan lent out or grant
made to the third party business. As obligations are met, the loan s paid off or written down and the
loan balance Is earned or forfeited. Unearned revenue is recognized in income as performance
obligations are met and contingent grants made are recognized in expense as earned by the
grantee.

267ED424-02 Grant

The 267ED424-02 grant offered assistance to local businesses by offering low interest business
loans, The Corporation receives interest and principdl payments on a monthly basis. At
December 31, 2021, the loan balance outstanding was $19,059.

Microbusiness Program -

The microbusiness program is funded by the loan program..fThe program offers technical assistance
to local businesses. The program also offérs seminars taught by local business owners and
professionals. I :

SBA-Microloan Program

Loans are provided to small busiriesses in Columbia and Greene Counties funded by the Small
Business Administration (SBA). Loans’over 120 days past due are required to be charged off. The
loan maturity date should not exceed six years on Microloans. The Corporation may charge up to
7.75% over the Corporation’s cost of funds on a microloan of more than $10,000 and up to 8.5%
over the Intermediary's cost of funds on a microloan of $10,000 or less. Amounts loaned to the
Corporation are maintained in a restricted revolving loan fund. The Corporation is aiso required to
maintain a separate loan loss resérve fund with its own funds representing at |least 15% of SBA
funds received.

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
and reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. In accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, the Corporation applies all applicable
Governmantal Accounting Standards Board (GASB} pronouncements as the Corporation is a
component unit of the County of Columbia, New York (the "County”), a governmental entity. The
Corporation does not apply any Financiai Accounting Standards Board (FASB)} or AICPA
pronouncements post November 30, 1989, as clarified by GASB No. 82. In adcordance with GASB
standards, bafances and acfivity for the Corporation are presented as an enterprise fund.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Deferred Outflows/Infiows of Resources

GASB Statement No. 63, Financlal Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Net Position, and GASB Statement No. 65, lflems Previously Reporfed as Assets
and Liabilities, defined and classified deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources. A deferred outflow of resources Is a consumption of net assets that applies to future
period(s), and as such, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources {expensefexpenditure} until
that time. A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net assets that applies to future
period(s), and as such, will not be recognized as an inflow of resources {revenue) until that time.

Statement 83 changed how governments organize their statements of financial position (such as the
current government-wide statement of net assels and the governmental funds balance sheet).

As a result of Statement 63, financial statements will include deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources (“deferrals”), in addition fo assets and liabilities, and will report nhet
position instead of net assets. .

Membership fees collected In the current year that wil] be recognized as revenue next year and grant
payments received in advance of the grant term are classified as a deferred inflow.

Prior Year Amounts

Amounts shown for December 31, 2020, in the accompanying statements are included to provide a
basis for comparison with December-31, 2021 and present summarized totals only. Accordingly, the
December 31, 2020 amounts are not intended to present all information necessary for a falr
presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, o '

Budgetary Data
The budget policies are as follows:

In October of each year, the Pre‘siéientiCEO submits a tentative budget to the Board of Directors for
their approval for the next fiscal year. The tentative budget includes proposed expenditures and the
proposed means of financing, which is to be used as a guide of activity for the fiscal year.

Income Taxes

A provision for income tax has not been provided for in these financial statements, as the
Corporation is a not-for-profit corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501{¢)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code.

The Corporation has evaluated any uncertain tax positions and related income tax contingencies
and determined uncertain positions, if any, are not material to the financial statements. Penalties
and interest assessed by income taxing authorities are included in operating expenses, if incurred.
None of the Corporation’s returns are currently under examination.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 2 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those amounts.

The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions,
in connection with the determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains
independent appraisals for significant coliateral.

The Corparation's loans are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property,
consumer assets, and business assets, along with personal guarantees. Although the Corporation
has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors' ability to honor their contracts is
dependent on local economic cenditions in Columbia Co/unty, New York.

While management uses avaiiable Information to recagnize losses on loans, further reductions in the
carrying amounts of loans may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions.
Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans may change
materially in the near term. '

Revenue Recognition

Coniribution revenue is recognizéd in the period it is unconditional, measurable, and future
installments are considered probiable of collection. Contribution revenue that is restricted as a result
of a purpose or time restriction is intluded as a component of “restricted net position”, when
applicable. '

Administrative revenué is recognized in the period services are provided and payments are generally
received from related parties on a quarterly basis. Grant revenue is recognized on cost reimbursable
contracts in the period the costs .afe incurred. Advances on grants prior to costs being incurred in
accordance with the terms of theé grant agreement are deferred until the period costs are incurred.
Membership revenue is recognized as revenue over the period of membership.

interest on loans Is recognized in the period earned over the life of the related loans receivable.

Operating revenues include revenue generated from ongoing operating activities. Non-operating
revenues include investing, financing and other non-recurring activities.

Columbia County Appropriation

For the year ended December 31, 2021, Columbia County appropriated $368,000 for unrestricted
use by the Corporation. The Corporation recognizes appropriated income in the period appropriated.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Corporation considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Certificates of Deposit
The Corporation records certificate of deposits at amortized cost.
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and fair market value for donated items. Maintenance
and repairs are expensed as incurred whereas major repairs and betterments are capitalized.
Property and equipment comprise office equipment, furniture and software. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight-line method over the estimated useful livés of the respective assets, which are:

Computer/Software - 3-5 years
Furniture and Equipment £ 5—10 years

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans are stated at their recorded investment, which is the ahﬁount of unpaid principal, reduced by
an aliowance for loan losses. Interest is calculated by using the simple interest method.

The allowance for loan losses reflécts management's judgment of probable loan losses inherent in
the portfolio at the balance sheet date. The Corporation uses a disciplined process and methodology
to establish the allowance for loan losses. To determine the total allowance for loan losses,
management estimates the reserves needed for each loan outstanding.

To determine the baldnce of the allowance account, loans are evaluated on a case by case basis
and future losses are projected using historical experience adjusted for current economic and
industry conditions. Management exercises significant judgment in determining the estimation
method that fits the credit risk characteristics of each case. Management must use judgment in
establishing additional input factors for estimating purposes. The assumptions used to determine the
allowance are periodically reviewed by management to ensure that their theoretical foundation,
assumptions, data integrity, computational processes, and reporting practices are appropriate and
properly documentad.

The establishment of the allowance for loan losses relies on a consistent process that requires
multiple layers of management review and judgment and responds to changes In economic
conditions, customer behavior, and collateral value, among other influences. From time to time,
events or economic factors may affect the loan portfolio, causing management to provide additional
amounts to, or release balances from, the allowance for loan losses.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Management monitors differences between estimated and actual incurred loan losses, This
monitoring process includes periodic assessments by senior management of loan portfolios and the
assumptions used to estimate incurred losses in those portfolios. Additions to the allowance for loan
Josses are made by charges to the provision for loan losses. Credit exposures deemed fo be
uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses. Recoveries of previously charged off
amounts are credited to the allowance for loan losses.

Concentration of Credit and Market Risk

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Corporation to concentrations of credit and market
risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit and loans receivable, Cash
and cash equivalents and certificates of deposit are maintained at Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation insured financial institutions and credit exposure is limited to any one institution. As of
December 31, 2021, the Corporation was in excess of the FDIC limits of approximately $1,003,40C,
which is not collateralized.

Congentrations of credit risk with respect to notes receivables are fimited due to the diverse industry
backgrounds of its borrowers. Furthermore, management feels its borrower approval processes and
regular review of provisions for loan losses, adequately provides for any material credit risks.
Generally, sufficient collateral or a personal guarantee is obtained for all loans at the time of
disbursement, Collateral is generally in the form of a mortgage on real propeity or a chattel lien on
equipment title. -

The Corporation received $408,000 f'rom"_,the County of Columbia representing 47% of its total
revenue for the year ended Dacember 31, 2021,

investment Policy

The Corporation’s hag an investment policy that includes authorized investments of the following
types: spacial time deposit accounts, certificates of deposit, obligations of the United States of
America, obligations guaranteed by.agencies of the United States of America where the payment of
principal and interest are guarariteed by the United States of America, obligations of the State of
New York and money market/savings accounts. All deposits of the Corporation in excess of Federal
Deposit Insurance Act (FDIC) coverage shall be secured by a pledge of eligible securities with an
aggregate market value equal to the aggregate amount of such deposits in excess of FDIC.

Interest Income on Loans

A%
Interest on loans is accrued and credited to income based on the principal amount outstanding. The
accrual of interest on loans is discontinued when, in accordance with adopted policies, there is an
indication that the borrower may be uhable to meet payments as they become due. Upon such
discontinuiance, all unpaid accrued Interest is reversed.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Risks and Uncertainties
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-18 a pandemic.

in May 2020, the Corporation applied for and received a loan in the amount of $68,700 from its bank
through the Small Business Administration’s ("SBA") Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP"). This
loan has allowed the Corporation to retain a full workforce to date. in February 2021, the loan,
including principal and interest, were forgiven and considered repaid in full. The balance is included
as forgiveness of paycheck protection program loans in the statement of activities for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

In February 2021, the Corporation applied for and received a second PPP loan in the amount of
$64,114. In December 2021, this loan was forgiven in full by the SBA and is included as forgivenaess
of paycheck protection program loans on the statement of activities for the year ended December
31, 2021.

According to the rules of the SBA, the Corporation is reguired {o retain PPP loan documentation for
six years after the date the loan is forgiven or repaid:in full, and permit authorized representatives of
the SBA, including representatives of its Office of Inspector General, to access such files upon
request. Should the SBA conduct such a review and reject all or some of the Corporation’s
judgments pertaining to satisfying PPP loan eligibllity or forgiveness conditions, the Carporation may
be required to adjust previously reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
S '

As the pandemic continues to endurg, the disease could have an adverse material effect on the
Corporation’s activities, results of operations, financial condition and cash flow.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have b‘een evaluated through March __, 2022, which is the date the financial
statements were avallabls to be isst\;ed.

NOTE 3 — CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT
The Corporation has a certificate of deposit (CD) at Berkshire Bank, The CD is for a 6-month term

scheduled to mature in April 2022. The CD's interest rate was 0.25% and had a balance of $153,955
as of Decembsr 31, 2021.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPCRATION
(A Component Unit of the Gounty of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Corporation foaned $580,400 to 25 local businesses.
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Corporation increased its allowance for loan losses
by $50,000 based on its expected future loan losses calculation.

A summary of loan activity is as follows:

Balance at {(Write-offs)  Balance at
December New and December Current
31, 2020 Lendings Payments Recoveries 31, 2021 Portion
Loan Fund $ 1,134,507 $ 280,000 $ 174,614 $ (4492) § 1,235401 § 344,718
CDBG Small Cities 27,062 - 7,993 - 18,059 10,128
SBA Microloan 600,469 300,400 209,907, 900 691,862 172,425

1,762,028 $ 580,400 §$ 392514 ~§ (3,592) 1,846,322 § 527,270

| ess: Allowance for

loan losses {231,826) . (278,233)
Total Loans $ 1,530,202 $ 1,668,088

NOTE 5 — FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT
1 .
A summary of furniture and equipment is as follows as of December 31, 2021:

,D{éC'ember31,§O20' Acquisitions  Disposals _December 31, 2021

Furniture and equipment - $ 40,367 $ 3,693 $ - 3 44,060
Accumulated depreciation e {26,027) (5,293) - {31,320}
Total Furniture and Equipment 5 14340 $  (1,600) $ - 3 12,740

Depreciation expense was $5,293 during the year ended December 31, 2021,
NOTE 6 - LOAN PA‘?ABLE - EIDL

In July 2020, the Corporation applied for and received a loan in the amount of $100,000 from the
SBA’s Emergency Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL) Program. Interest accrues on the EIDL loan at a flxed
rate of 2.75% per annum, Otiginally the loan allowed a 12-month deferral period of all principal
payments due on the EIDL loan, with interest aceruing on the principal balance during this 12-month
deferral period. In March 2021, the SBA extended the defetral period anothert 12 months.

Beginning August 2022, the Corporation wili began to make 326 monthly payments of $451, with the
first payments received by the SBA going first towards the accrued interest to date until the accrued
interest is paid off in full. Once the accrued interest is paid in full, these monthly payments will then
go towards principal and interest.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 6 — LOAN PAYABLE — EIDL (Continued)

The EiDL loan matures on July 24, 2050 and is collateralized by all tangible and intangible property
of the Corporation, including equipment, accounts receivable, and deposit accounts.

Maturities of the loan payable are as follows:

2022 % -
2023 1,083
2024 2,642
2025 2,715
2028 2,791
Thereafter 90,768
$ 100,000

NOTE 7 — RESTRICTED NET POSITION

Restricted net position at December 31, 2021, consists of the following:

Commerce Park water tower S 8 71,817
County directed ) 48,889
Columbia County Student Connects Program 23,000
Masten Park 15,000
SBA microloan program : _ 309,178
Total Restricted Net Position .- ‘ $ 467,884

in 2008, the Corporation did not remit the princlpal back to Columbia County, New York for
Commerce Park loans. The principal Is to be retained by the Corporation to alde in the construction
of the water tower withih Commerce Park. Refer to Note 9 for more information on the restrictions.

See note 9 for more information on the County directed restricted net position balance.

The SBA microloan program restiicted net position balance above represents the balance of the
Corporation’s SBA microloan program that has been borrowed from the SBA but has not been lent

to qualified businesses as of December 31, 2021.

The "Columbia County Student Connects Program” balance of $23,000 and “Masten Park” balance
of $15,000 represents grant funds received and restricted for specific purposes.
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COLUMRBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 8 — SBA MICROLOAN PROGRAM

Since 2003, the Corporation took the steps toward acquiring the Hudson Development Gorporation's
SBA loan portfolio by establishing a small business loan program. The Corporation acquired the
SBA loan program in 2008. Tolal loans outstanding, net of an allowance under this program of
$102,182, totaled $589,680 at December 31, 2021.

The Corporation borrows money fram SBA foan awards in order fo fund loans given to businesses
participating in the SBA program. The following illustrates the amounts payable to the SBA:

Balance at Balance at
December 31, 2020 Drawdowns  Payments December 31, 2021

$ 597,077 $ 300,000 $ 132,564 _$ 764,513

Once draws have been made from the SBA, the Corporation pays the SBA back based on an
amortization schedule for each specific drawdown. The following shows the combined expected
payout of the SBA drawdowns—Draw Five, Draw Six, Draw Seven, and Draw Eight:

oA

December31, - Balance
2022 $ © 140,833
2023 122,893
2024 S 97,778

2025 97,778
2026 E 85,555
Thereafter 219,675

Total $ 764,513

Each drawdown has repdyments of principal and interest, with each drawdown having a separate
interest rate based on the agreement—0.75% (Draw Five), 1.25% (Draw Six), 1.75% (Draw Seven),
and 0.25% (Draw Eight) per annum. |

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Corporation borrowed $300,000 from an additional
SBA drawdown (Draw Eight).

NOTE 8 —~ COMMERCE PARK LAND

Beginning in 2005, Golumbia County initlated a program to sell undeveloped land it owns in
Commetrce Park through a component unit, the Columbia County DA, CEDC works directly with the
buyer on the County’s behalf. CEDC receives a deposit from the buyer and in turn uses this money
to pay for surveying and legal fees associated with the transfer of the land.

CEDG recognizes a receivable for the sales price due from the buyer and a liability to the County for
the same amount. The CCIDA plays an administrative role in the transfer of the land and receives a
stipend from the first payment made. The CEDC retains the interest portion earned on land sale
recelvables as payment for servicing the loans and the remaining principal portion is forwarded to
the County.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 9 — COMMERCE PARK LAND {Continued)

In 2008 and only for 2008, the CEDG retained the principal and interest payments, as agreed upon
with the County, to assist the County with the possible future construction of a water tower in
Commerce Park. The principal forgiven during 2008 was recognized as revenue,

In June 2016, the Corporation sold land in the Commerce Park to a local individual for $50,000, with
$4,500 being paid to the Corporation as a deposit in 2015. The Corporation received a $45,500 five-
year note at 4.5% per annum with payments commencing on June 8, 2017. The note provides for an
annual payment of $10,365 of principal and interest, with a final payment due to the Corporation on
June 8, 2021. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Corporation approved a deferral of
loan payments extending the maturity date to June 8, 2022. The principal portion, $48,889, of the
note, net of legal fees of $1,111, normally remitted to the County was recognized as revenue during
the year ended December 31, 2016. The County asked CEDC to retain the principal portion as
restricted net position o be used as directed by the County in the future.

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLAN

The Corporation has a SARSEP pension plan. The Corhorqﬁon pays' 5% of eligible employee’s
gross wages each year. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Cofporation recorded $8,330
in pension expense. S

NOTE 11 — UNEARNED REVENUE
As of December 31, 2021, unearned revenue (ndte_ 1} is comprised of:
CDBG Smll Ciies: |
Arigello's Bistributing, Inc. $ 19,059

Hudson Valley Creamery 45,000
Totai unearned revenue $ 64,059

NOTE 12 — RELATED ‘PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Corporaticn received $24,000 in administrative fees
from Columbia County Industrial Development Agency (CCIDA). During 2021, the Corporation paid
$3,774 to Columbia County Capital Resource Corporation (CCCRC) in the form of a grant. As of
December 31, 2021, $12,000 was due from CCIDA.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Corporation entered into an agreement with
Columbia County related to broadband access. During the year ended December 31, 2021, $40,000
was recognized and included as “grant revenue” on the statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net assets. As of December 31, 2021, $40,000 is included in "accounts receivable” on
the statement of net position.
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

NOTE 13 — RENT EXPENSE

The Corporation rents office space under the terms of a lease commencing September 1, 2019 and
terminating August 31, 2024. The lease includes an option to renew for an additional five-year ferm.
The lease calls for monthly payments ranging from $3,200 to $3,532 over the term of the lease.
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Corporation paid $39,688 of rent expense. Future
minimum lease commitments are as follows:

2022 § 40,680
2023 41,696
2024 28,256

$ 110,632

NOTE 14 - FISCAL AGENT ARRANGEMENTS

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Corporation acted as a fiscal agent for one
organization, the Hudson Business Coalition Hudson Bond Program. As of Decermber 31, 2021, the
Corporation held $14,670 of cash shown as "Restricted cash - fiscal agency” on the statement of net
position. As of December 31, 2021, $14,670 is presented as a liability shown as “Due to fiscal
agency’ on the statement of net position. The Corporation did not earn any administrative fees
during the year ended December 31, 2021. -As an agent, the Corporation does not record any
revenues or expenses received/paid on behalf of the entity. ' :
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Chairman and Board of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audiling
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Columbia Economic Deveiopment Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectivély comprise Columbia Economic
Development Corporatlon's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
March __, 2022, v

internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and petforming our audit of the {financial statements, we considered Columbia Economic
Development Corporation’s intemnal controf over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing procedures that are appropriate in"the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinlon on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s internal control, Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficlency, or a
combination of deficiencles, In internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility-that a
material misstatement of - the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important encugh to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was hot designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencles
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.
We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses as item 2021-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Columbia Economic Deavelopment
Corporation’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resulis of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s Response to Findings

Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s response to the findings identified in our audit is
described In the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. Columbia Economic
Development Corporation’s response was not subjected to'the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we expréss no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of infernal control and
compliance and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectivenass of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards fn considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Hudson, New York
March __, 2022
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COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the County of Columbia, New York)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

December 31, 2021

FINDING 2021-001

Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Financial Reporting ~ Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG)

Criteria:

The Corporation is responsible for ensuring its financial statements are recorded in accordance
with Generally Accapted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

Candition:

The Corporation entered Into an agreement with Columbia County to administer a Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) to a local business, however, failed to ptoperly record the
transactions within Its general ledger based on the underlying contracts. The grant is in the form

of a forgivable loan which is forgiven after five years if conditions are met. A loan receivable
asset and unearned revenue liability should have been recorded.

Cause:

Management's review procedures in this instance were not sufficient to ensure that this
transaction was recorded completely and accurately.
Coni

Effect or Potential Effect:

The Corporation’s financial statemenr’its c_:_puld be understated and not in conformity with GAAP.
Recommendation: |

Management should implement a review procedure for CDBG grants that ensures all activity is
recorded accurately prior to the start of the audit.

Responsible Official's:Response:
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CONFIDENTIAL

TO: CEDC Loan Committee
FROM: Lauren Cranna, Business Development Partner
SUBJECT: Authorization to Make a Loan and Take Related Actions
DATE: March 15, 2022
Applicant; Creature of Habit Hair Studio, Inc.
373 Main Street
Catskill, NY 12414
Amount; $25,000 SBA Microloan
Purpose: Equipment, materials, working capital
Interest Rate: 5.00%
Repayment: 72 level monthly payments, fully amortized, of $402.62

Proposed Collateral: Lien on business assets (may need to reserve collateral for second lender)

Other Security: Personal guarantyjof Principals




CONFIDENTIAL

TO: CEDC Loan Committes
FROM: Lauren Cranna, Business Development Partner
SUBJECT: Authorization to Make a Loan and Take Related Actions
DATE: March 15, 2022
Applicant: ADC Food Studio, Inc. DBA The Gilded Larder
2642 Route 23 '
Hilisdale, NY 12529
Amount: $40,000:
e $15,000 SBA Microloan
e $25,000 CEDC Loan
Purpose: Equipment, inventory, materials, working capital
Interest Rate: 5.00%
Repayment: SBA: 72 level monthly payments, fully amortized, of $241.57
CEDC: 72 level monthly payments, fully amortized, of $402.62
Total monthly payment: $644.19
Proposed Collateral: Lien on business assets

Other Security:

Personal guaranty of Principal




